Public Document Pack

NOTICE

4 .

S !

> Ve

S 2 &

S0 s

§ e ‘

OF - R

z | Royal Borough
2 | of Windsor &
2 | Maidenhead

MEETING

WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT PANEL

will meet on

WEDNESDAY, 10TH OCTOBER, 2018
At 7.00 pm
in the
COUNCIL CHAMBER - GUILDHALL WINDSOR,

TO: MEMBERS OF THE WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

COUNCILLORS MALCOLM ALEXANDER (CHAIRMAN), PHILLIP BICKNELL (VICE-
CHAIRMAN), MICHAEL AIREY, JOHN BOWDEN, WISDOM DA COSTA, JESSE GREY,
EILEEN QUICK, SAMANTHA RAYNER AND SHAMSUL SHELIM

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

COUNCILLORS NATASHA AIREY, CHRISTINE BATESON, MALCOLM BEER,
HASHIM BHATTI, GARY MUIR, NICOLA PRYER, JACK RANKIN, WESLEY RICHARDS
AND EDWARD WILSON

Karen Shepherd — Service Lead Democratic Services - Issued: 1 October 2018

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part | of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Wendy Binmore 01628 796251

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly
by the nearest exit. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts. Do not re-enter the building
until told to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings —In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the public part of the meeting will be
audio recorded, and may also be filmed and broadcast through the online application Periscope. If filmed, the footage
will be available through the council’s main Twitter feed @RBWM or via the Periscope website. The audio recording
will also be made available on the RBWM website, after the meeting.

Filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings may be undertaken by any person attending the
meeting. By entering the meeting room you are acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this
recording will be in the public domain. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the
Democratic Services or Legal representative at the meeting.



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/

ITEM

AGENDA

PART |
SUBJECT

PAGE

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest.

MINUTES

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

To consider the Head of Planning’s report on planning applications
received.

Full details on all planning applications (including application forms, site
plans, objections received, correspondence etc.) can be found by
accessing the Planning Applications Public Access Module at
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

To consider the Essential Monitoring reports.

43 - 44







This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Access to Information)
Act

1985, each item on this report includes a list of Background Papers that have been
relied

on to a material extent in the formulation of the report and recommendation.

The list of Background Papers will normally include relevant previous planning decisions,
replies to formal consultations and relevant letter of representation received from local
societies, and members of the public. For ease of reference, the total number of letters
received from members of the public will normally be listed as a single Background
Paper,

although a distinction will be made where contrary views are expressed. Any replies to
consultations that are not received by the time the report goes to print will be recorded
as

“Comments Awaited”.

The list will not include published documents such as the Town and Country Planning
Acts

and associated legislation, Department of the Environment Circulars, the Berkshire
Structure Plan, Statutory Local Plans or other forms of Supplementary Planning
Guidance,

as the instructions, advice and policies contained within these documents are common
to

the determination of all planning applications. Any reference to any of these documents
will be made as necessary under the heading “Remarks”.

STATEMENT OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998

The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October 2000,
and it will now, subject to certain exceptions, be directly unlawful for a public authority to
act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. In particular, Article 8
(respect

for private and family life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of property)
apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to be made however, there is
further provision that a public authority must take into account the public interest. In the
vast majority of cases existing planning law has for many years demanded a balancing
exercise between private rights and public interest, and therefore much of this authority’s
decision making will continue to take into account this balance.

The Human Rights Act will not be referred to in the Officer’s report for individual
applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances
which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human Rights issues.



MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS
Disclosure at Meetings

If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.

A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not
take part in the discussion or vote at a meeting. The speaking time allocated for Members to make
representations is at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting. In order to avoid any accusations of taking
part in the discussion or vote, after speaking, Members should move away from the panel table to a public area
or, if they wish, leave the room. If the interest declared has not been entered on to a Members’ Register of
Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include:

e Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.

e Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in
carrying out member duties or election expenses.

e Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been
fully discharged.

o Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority.

e Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

e Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest.

e Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting.

A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: 1 declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, | will leave the room/ move to the public area for the
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx.
As soon as we come to that item, | will make representations, then | will leave the room/ move to the
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Prejudicial Interests

Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.

A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘1 declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, | will leave the room/ move to the public area for the
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Or, if making representations in the item: 1 declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as
we come to that item, | will make representations, then | will leave the room/ move to the public area for
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’

Personal interests

Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a
Member when making a decision on council matters.

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, | will take part in the discussion and vote on the
matter. 6



Agenda Iltem 3

WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL

WEDNESDAY, 12 SEPTEMBER 2018

PRESENT: Councillors Malcolm Alexander (Chairman), Phillip Bicknell (Vice-
Chairman), Michael Airey, John Bowden, Wisdom Da Costa, Jesse Grey, Eileen Quick,
Samantha Rayner and Shamsul Shelim

Officers: Wendy Binmore, Ashley Smith and Lyndsay Jennings

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

None.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

MINUTES

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 August 2018

be approved.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

18/00753

18/01302

18/01937*

Mr Collett: Outline application (access, layout and scale) for the
construction of 2 x two bedroom dwellings, 10 x two bedroom
apartments and 1 x one bedroom apartment following the demolition
of 9-11 Imperial Road at 9-11 Imperial Road, Windsor — THE PANEL
VOTED UNANIMOUSLY to confirm that it would have resolved to
grant planning permission in accordance with the Head of
Planning’s recommendations, with the conditions listed in
Section 6 of the Main Report.

(The Panel was addressed Michael Lee the agent on behalf of the
applicant).

Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead: Erection of 3 x new lighting
columns and 3 x additional light fittings to the existing columns on the
netball/tennis courts at Dedworth Middle School, Smiths Lane,
Windsor SL4 5PE — THE PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY to
approve the application in accordance with the Head of
Planning’s Recommendations, with the conditions listed in
Section 9 of the Main Report and the added condition that the
timings of lighting are to coincide with the previous conditions re
lighting times and for the Head of Planning in conjunction with
the Chairman to confirm they are the same.

Mr Gray: Construction of 1 x 2 bed and 1 x 1 bed residential unit
following the demolition of garages and stores at Land to Rear of 54 to
60 Clewer Hil Road, Windsor — THE PANEL VOTED
UNANIMOUSLY to refuse the application in accordance with the

v



Head of Planning’s Recommendations, with the conditions listed
in Section 10 of the Main Report.

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

All details of the Essential Monitoring Report were noted.

The meeting, which began at 7.00 pm, finished at 7.20 pm

CHAIRMAN. ...,



Agenda Item 4

RoYyAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD

Windsor Urban Panel

10th October 2018

INDEX
APP = Approval
CLU = Certificate of Lawful Use
DD = Defer and Delegate
DLA = Defer Legal Agreement
PERM = Permit
PNR = Prior Approval Not Required
REF = Refusal
WA = Would Have Approved
WR = Would Have Refused
Iltem No. 1 Application No. 17/03345/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 11
Location: 130 St Andrews Crescent Windsor SL4 4EN
Proposal: Alterations to the roof to facilitate loft conversion with x3 side (north-west) facing dormers and x1 side (south-
east) facing dormer and x1 rear Juliette balcony and alterations to fenestration (retrospective)
Applicant:  Mrs Pawlik-Cazin Member Call-in: Expiry Date: 27 December 2017
Iltem No. 2 Application No. 18/02283/FULL Recommendation REF Page No. 24
Location: Garage Block To Rear of 121 And 123 And Land Rear of 113 To 117 Springfield Road Windsor
Proposal: Construction of x4 dwellings with associated car parking, landscaping and associated infrastructure following
demolition of all existing buildings.
Applicant: Member Call-in: Expiry Date: 12 October 2018

AGLIST



This page is intentionally left blank



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD
PLANNING COMMITTEE

WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

10 October 2018 ltem: 1

Application 17/03345/FULL

No.:

Location: 130 St Andrews Crescent Windsor SL4 4EN

Proposal: Alterations to the roof to facilitate loft conversion with x3 side (north-west) facing
dormers and x1 side (south-east) facing dormer and x1 rear Juliette balcony and
alterations to fenestration (retrospective)

Applicant: Mrs Pawlik-Cazin

Agent: Mr John Andrews

Parish/Ward:  Windsor Unparished/Clewer South Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Lucinda Pinhorne-Smy on 01628 796462
or at lucinda.pinhorne-smy@rbwm.gov.uk

11

1.2

3.1

4.1

SUMMARY

The current application is an amendment to the scheme granted conditional planning permission
under application 16/00790/FULL. Subsequent to the grant of planning permission
16/00790/FULL, the works carried out on site were not in accordance with the approved plans.
This application seeks to regularise the works that have been carried out.

The alterations to the roof to the rear are considered acceptable and would not result in any harm
to the living conditions of neighbouring properties. The proposed Juliet balcony would be
acceptable. The retention of opening, clear glazed windows to the side elevation would have an
unacceptable impact on the privacy of adjoining occupiers. Conditions 1 and 3 are
recommended to require non-opening, obscure glazed windows to be fitted and all works to be
carried out within six weeks of the date of any planning permission.

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in
Section 10 of this report.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION
* At the request of Councillor E Wilson because of impact on the neighbouring property.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The site is a detached bungalow located on the southern side of St Andrews Crescent, near to
the junction with Bell View. The area is residential, characterised by a large number of
bungalows. Significant roof alterations, including dormers and hip to gable alterations, have been
undertaken at many properties within the area.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The current application is an amendment to the scheme granted conditional planning permission
under application 16/00790/FULL. The covering letter submitted with this application provides an
explanation of the background. Subsequent to the grant of planning permission 16/00790/FULL
on 20" May 2016 the works carried out on site were not in accordance with the approved plans.

11



4.2

5.1

6.1

6.2

The windows installed on site do not comply with condition number 5 of planning permission
16/00790/FULL, being clear-glazed and opening. The departure in the window design is stated
as being in response to the Building Inspector's guidance with regards to providing a means of
escape. A planning application was submitted under reference 17/01963/FULL seeking approval
for the windows as installed. However, this application was withdrawn after the case officer
observed during a site visit that the scale of the roof extension had been reduced and an existing
single storey flat roof area retained. In order to resolve all matters under the cover of one
application, 17/01963/FULL was withdrawn and this current application submitted to regularise all
matters on site.

Ref. Description Decision and
Date

16/00790 | Alterations and extension to roof to facilitate conversion | Permitted
of loft into habitable accommodation with 3 side | 20/05/2016
dormers, Juliette balcony and amendments to
fenestration

DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Adopted Royal Borough Local Plan (2003)

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within Parking
settlement | provision
area
Local Plan DG1, H14 P4

These policies can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
National Planning Policy Framework Sections (NPPF) (2018

Chapter 2. Achieving sustainable development
Chapter 3. Plan-making

Chapter 4. Decision-making

Chapter 8. Promoting healthy and safe communities
Chapter 9. Promoting sustainable transport

Chapter 12. Achieving well-designed places

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and SP2, SP3
appearance of area

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents have now been
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination. The Submission Version of the Borough
Local Plan does not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough. However, by
publishing and submitting the Borough Local Plan for independent examination the Council has
formally confirmed its intention to adopt the submission version. As the Council considers the


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

emerging Borough Local Plan to be sound and legally compliant, officers and Councillors should
accord relevant policies and allocations significant weight in the determination of applications
taking account of the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies.
Therefore, the weight afforded to each policy at this stage will differ depending on the level and
type of representation to that policy. This is addressed in more details in the assessment below.

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

[ Impact on appearance of area and living conditions of neighbours

ii Parking provision

[ Impact on appearance of area and living conditions of neighbours

The appearance of a development is a material planning consideration and the National Planning
Policy Framework 2018, Section 12 (Achieving Well-Designed Places) and Local Plan Policy
DG1, advises that all development should seek to achieve a high quality of design that improves
the character and quality of an area.

The current application is an amendment to the scheme granted conditional planning permission
under application 16/00790/FULL. The covering letter submitted with this application provides an
explanation of the background. Subsequent to the grant of planning permission 16/00790/FULL
on 20" May 2016 the works carried out on site were not in accordance with the approved plans.

The windows installed on site do not comply with condition number 5 of planning permission
16/00790/FULL, being clear-glazed and opening. The departure in the window design is stated
as being in response to the Building Inspector’s guidance with regards to providing a means of
escape. A planning application was submitted under reference 17/01963/FULL seeking approval
for the windows as installed. However, this application was withdrawn after the case officer
observed during a site visit that the scale of the roof extension had been reduced and an existing
single storey flat roof area retained. The development on site therefore does not accord with the
approved application drawings. In order to resolve all matters under the cover of one application,
17/01963/FULL was withdrawn and this current application submitted to regularise all matters on
site.

The amendments to the scale of the roof extensions, with the rear pitched roof element removed
from this current application and the original rear flat roof retained, are not considered to cause
any greater harm than the scheme approved under application 16/00790/FULL. Drawing
numbers ‘“17/JAA/EPC/2’ and “17/JAA/EPC/3’ indicate the proposed first floor railings would
comprise a Juliette balcony, with the French doors opening inwards. This is considered to
comprise a conventional design, in keeping with the main dwelling house. The design of the
dormer windows are unchanged from the scheme approved under application 16/00790/FULL.
The proposal is therefore considered to respect the appearance and design of the host dwelling
and the appearance and character of the street scene would not be harmed.

The reduction in the scale of the roof extension is considered to have less impact on the
residential amenities of adjacent properties in terms of over dominance, loss of light and
obtrusiveness. The dimensions and design of the proposed side dormers remain unchanged
from the scheme approved under application 16/00790/FULL.

13



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

The current application demonstrates the proposed balcony would comprise railings fixed to the
wall and extending across the width of the French doors serving bedroom 6 and would not
provide any outdoor amenity area, despite the retention of the flat roof above the single storey
element of the building. The presence of these railings are considered to ameliorate the impact
of the proposed French doors, which would not result in any greater propensity for overlooking of
neighbouring properties than a conventional window at first floor level. It is recommended,
however, that a condition is attached to any permission that may be forthcoming restricting the
use of the flat roof for any outdoor amenity purpose in order to overcome any potential issues of
overlooking.

Despite the imposition of a condition on planning permission 16/00790/FULL requiring the two
rearmost dormers in the northwest facing roofslope be fitted and permanently maintained with
obscure glass and opening 1.7m above floor level, the glazing installed on site is clear and
opening. The condition also required and the window within the dormer in the southeast facing
roofslope to be fitted and permanently maintained with obscure glass and opening 1.7m above
floor level, however, the glazing within the foremost dormer window in the northwest roofslope
was not restricted by means condition. There are no material changes to the application site or
the neighbouring properties which would overcome the need for such a condition to be carried
over to this current application. Whilst it is acknowledged that the windows were fitted on the
basis of guidance provided by the Building Inspector this does not alter the planning
considerations for these windows and it is clear that the installation of clear-glazed opening
windows has resulted in a poor relationship with the neighbouring properties and cannot be
supported. However, paragraph 54 of the NPPF states that Local Planning Authorities should
consider whether otherwise unacceptable development could be made acceptable through the
use of conditions. Such conditions must be necessary, relevant to planning and to the
development to be permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. It is
therefore considered that the glazing installed in the side windows could be managed via the
means of a planning condition rather than proving fatal to the assessment of this application.

In considering the nature of the condition to be attached, it is clear that the existing windows
result in an unacceptable degree of overlooking. Classes A, B and C of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 allow first floor windows in a side
elevations provided they are obscure-glazed and non-opening unless the parts of the window
which can be opened are more than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window
is installed. In order to comply with the tests set out in paragraphs 55 and 56 of the NPPF it is
therefore considered that a repeat of the condition attached to planning permission
16/00790/FULL, which would be in line with permitted development restrictions set out in Article
3, Schedule 2 and Part 1 of the GPDO, would be practicable and reasonable whilst adequately
protecting the privacy of neighbouring properties. Condition 3 is recommended in relation to the
windows.

Given that unauthorised works have been carried out at the site and this application seeks to
regularise them, Condition 1 is imposed to ensure that the regularisation works are carried out
within six weeks of the grant of permission. A failure to comply with this condition could result in
enforcement action being taken.

Subject to the recommended conditions, the proposal is considered acceptable in terms of its
design and impact on the living conditions of neighbours. It would comply with policies DG1 and
H14 of the Local Plan and emerging policies SP2 and SP3.

ii Parking provision

Sufficient space would remain on the site to accommodate the car parking for the resulting

dwelling in compliance with the adopted parking standards in Appendix 7 of the Local Plan as
amended by the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Parking Strategy, May 2004.

14



8.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

5 neighbouring properties were notified directly of the application.

1 letter was received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Comment

Where in the

report this is
considered

Development is contrary to conditions 3 and 5 attached to planning
permission 16/00790/FULL.

Clear-glazed opening windows have been installed which have resulted
in overlooking of neighbouring properties.

The Juliette balcony railings have not been installed thereby facilitating
the use of the flat roof as an outdoor amenity area.

The development as built results in a loss of privacy
Other similar forms of development have been constructed in

accordance with conditions restricting windows to be fitted and
permanently maintained with obscure glass and fixed shut.

The
development
carried out on
site is not in
accordance with
the plans
approved for
planning
permission
16/00790/FULL.
This current
application
seeks to
regularise the
situation.

Detailed
consideration of
the impact of
the proposed
amendments on
the residential
amenities of
adjacent
properties is
considered at
paragraph at 4.3
below and
includes an
assessment of
issues such as
overlooking and
loss of privacy.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

Appendix A — Approved Plans
Appendix B — Proposed Plans

Documents associated with the application can be viewed at
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp by entering the application number shown at the top of

this report without the suffix letters.

15



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp

10.

CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development hereby permitted shall be completed within six weeks from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

Notwithstanding the design of the windows shown on the approved plans,the windows within the
two rearmost dormers in the northwest facing roofslope and the window within the dormer in the
south east facing roofslope of the extension shall be of a permanently fixed, non-opening design,
with the exception of an opening toplight that is a minimum of 1.7m above the finished internal
floor level, and fitted with obscure glass and the window shall not be altered without the prior
written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To prevent overlooking and loss of privacy to neighbouring occupiers. Relevant Policies
- Local Plan H14.

The flat roof area of the extension hereby approved shall not be used as a balcony, roof garden
or similar amenity area without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To prevent overlooking and loss of privacy to neighbouring occupiers. Relevant Policies
- Local Plan H14.

The materials to be used on the external surfaces of the development shall be in accordance with
those specified in the application unless any different materials are first agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1.

16



Appendix A Approved Plans

ray

EY pPIIRISSY 49 91,634

1adn S35 uwoag a0 ;
H
— | OMTZOVET AT 00T:T - ueld oy 00T:T - 100]4 PUNoID

SNY1d d35S0d04d

B
S

opiL
N3P 1S
HOSANIM - L
JUADSAUID SMRJPUY IS '0ET 4] L
you{osg -
o .
b -
00Z:T -Ue|d 3o0|g H ﬁ
4 rer=d =l
- TiWH
zg) 'uie Auadoud R r s
| |
L
% 3 DL 7 mi
N r -
srazen L
MOOEHLIYE
I londieas ! 9 s
il Y - 1) |
e P AN | r \ o
ETITETY
gz 'u1e Auadoid 7 - .
_ i | e & WookaTE
0€ L e Auadosd 7 — 1 I —
T I 2oWvD

17



EY PpaMElS 5y 49 EIR=EE]

) X ARy )
- PONATEDWST
spay By fuspg
NOLLD3S ANV
SNOLLYA3T3 Q35040%d
L

N3t +I15

HOSONIM

IUBISII] SMBJPUY 15 '0ET
yealala

0 =y

wh

00T:T - NOILWAI13 dv3d

00T-T - NOILD3S

FaHaL

W SRR .w.Z.._.ﬂm_

L 4

7 I

~w¢\
z

A

00T:T - NOILYAI13 3dIS

00T:T - NOLLYAdTS 3dIS

|

18



Appendix B Proposed Plans

NIZVD - NITMVd VA3 :INVIINddY

N3t 715 ‘IHIHSNY3E 001:1 - ueyd oMy 00T:T - 4004 punol9
‘YOSANIM ‘INIISIHD SMIHANY 1S 0ET - - s
1w e
NOLLYHISIN34 OL
SINIWANIWY GNY ANOITVE 3LLINN( Q350d0Y¥d sV

‘SYINYOA 3AIS HLIM NOILYAOWIWOIIY
F1EVLISVH OLNI 1107 40 NOISHIANOD
ALVINDVA OL 400¥ OL SNOLLYYILTY

00Z:T -ueid >20|8

zeL v e fuadosd . = e
e :
Pt =
.1
1
AN v d
SN0 HUWLAHS G204 D J——
e mocusiva ] wooukive
.
; k)= m P
o
J/\ WOCe038
- 5=

D smo0eca mocese

ot 2y - 8 =
— _ i
W0«
\ ;
-, N
o
/A/
— —_—
—

19



00T:T - NOLLD3S
€/2d3/VVr/LT "ON SNIMVYQ

NIZVY - MTMVd VAT 1INVIIddY R PPE e e

N3V ¥1S ‘JUIHSHYIG
‘HOSANIM “LNIISIUD SMIYANY 1S 0ET
v

NOILV¥ISINGS OL 00k:k i
SINIWANINY ONY ANODTVE 3LLINNT T 3
‘SYINYOQ 30IS HLM NOILVAOWINOIIY

g

[l
1

J18VLISVH OLINI 14017 40 NOISYIANOD
3LVINDV4 0L 008 OL SNOLLYYILTY

00T:T 37¥IS - SNOILYATI3

NOLLYAT13 (1SIM-HLNOS) ¥v3Iy

_m_mfﬂ\ﬁ ﬁ,IQ |

20



VE/Od3NVIILL "ON ONIMYYEQ

N3P 1S 'HOSONIM "IN3OSIHD SMIHANY LS 8Z1
40 NOILVA3T3 3dIS SG¥dvYymMmoL
N3¥ 71S "HOSONIM "LNIOS3IHO SMIMANY LS 0l
Ni
I MOONIM NO¥d LHOM ANV HLIN3D L4317 SM3IA

00K | w008 ~uey ooe

21



W SR

Bl WRag -ueyy woE

22



e/0d3/VVIiLL "ON ONIMYVNA

N3¥ #11S HOSANIM "LN3OSIAHD SMIYUANY 1S 821
40 NOILVA313 34IS SAYVMOL
N3P 1S HOSANIM "LN3OS3H0 SM3HUANY LS 0¢)
NI
£ MOONIM WOY4 LHOIY ANV IHLINID '1437 SM3IA

00¥) DRI -URL YI0R

\
.\,\
/
/
\
J
\I,/,/
b
/
0w meied
/
o
R
Ve
P

N\
N

23



WINDSOR URBAN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

10 October 2018 ltem: 2

Application 18/02283/FULL

No.:

Location: Garage Block To Rear of 121 And 123 And Land Rear of 113 To 117 Springfield Road
Windsor

Proposal: Construction of x4 dwellings with associated car parking, landscaping and associated
infrastructure following demolition of all existing buildings.

Applicant:

Agent: Mr Matt Hill

Parish/Ward:  Windsor Unparished/Clewer East Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Briony Franklin on 01628 796007 or at
briony.franklin@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 The proposal seeks to redevelop a site comprising derelict/disused garages, lock-up store
garages and a single storey office building and to erect a terrace of 3 x 4 bed, 2 ¥ storey
dwellings incorporating rear dormer windows and 1 x 3 bed, 2 storey detached dwelling with
associated car parking. The site is accessed via an existing access road from Springfield Road.

1.2 It is acknowledged that this scheme would make a contribution to the Borough’s housing stock
through the provision of 4 residential units, however the application is recommended for refusal
on the grounds that the proposal constitutes a cramped, and overdevelopment of the site and
would appear out of context with the surrounding residential development. In addition it is
considered that the proposal would appear visually dominant and unduly obtrusive when viewed
from the neighbouring bungalows in Combermere Close to the detriment of their outlook and
would result in an unacceptable level of overlooking and privacy to the rear gardens of these
properties. The width of the access road and the shortfall in parking provision are also
unacceptable.

1.3  The site also contains a single storey building which is understood to have been used, up until
recently, as an office. It has not been adequately demonstrated that the loss of this employment
use would not harm the employment opportunities in the locality.

It is recommended that the Panel refuses planning permission for the following
summarised reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 11 of this report):

1. | The proposed development would result in a cramped, overdevelopment of the site
and would appear out of context with the surrounding residential development to the
detriment of the character and visual amenity of the locality.

2. | The proposed development would result in an unacceptable impact on the living
conditions of the neighbouring bungalows, numbers 1 & 2 Combermere Close.

3. | The proposed development would result in insufficient car parking and the width of
the access is considered to be inadequate to the detriment of highway safety.

4 | It has not been properly demonstrated that the loss of employment use would not
harm the employment opportunities in the locality.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

At the request of Councillor Bowden, irrespective of the recommendation, on the grounds
of the mass of the buildings and comments from occupiers in Combermere Close.

24



3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

51

6.1

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site comprises a derelict/disused garage court, disused lock-up storage garages
and a vacant single storey office building. The site is accessed via an access road from
Springfield Road. The site lies to the rear of a small parade of shops with first floor flats above, a
2 storey flat roof building fronting Springfield Road. The site also lies to the rear of 2 storey
detached dwellings in Springfield Road and bungalows in Combermere Close. A footpath
providing access to the adjacent Oakfield First School and The Lawns Nursery lies along the
southern boundary of the site. Two storey maisonettes in Westmead lie to the south of the site.

The site lies within a post war suburban residential area characterised by medium density, two
storey dwellings, bungalows and maisonettes with moderately pitched roofs. The site lies to the
south-west of Windsor Town Centre.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

It is proposed to redevelop the site and erect 4 dwellings comprising a row of 3 x 4 bed dwellings
(houses 2,3,& 4) at the northern end of the site and a detached 3 bed dwelling (house 1) at the
southern end. The 4 bed dwellings would be 2 ¥ storeys, have an overall height of 9.3m and
incorporate dormer windows with photovoltaic panels in the rear elevations. The 3 bed, 2 storey
detached dwelling would replace the existing single storey office building and would have an
overall height of 7.6m. The dwellings have a fairly contemporary design and the finishing
materials would include red brick to match the surrounding dwellings, soldier course detailing to
provide visual interest and grey slate roofs. All glazing on the side (gable) elevations would be
obscured glazed and fixed. A total of six car parking spaces are shown to be provided in the
middle of the site. Dedicated bin stores would be located at the front of houses 2-4 and a bin
collection point for 8 bins is shown to be provided alongside house number 1. The private rear
garden depths range from between 5.3m and 8m. Access is gained via the existing access road
which lies between the parade of shops and number 121 Springfield Road. Four semi-mature
deciduous trees are proposed to be planted within the parking area.

The relevant planning history is set out below:

Ref. Description Decision and Date

89/02100/FULL | Erection of a detached single storey office on land | Permitted
rear of 113-115 Springfield Road.

DEVELOPMENT PLAN
Adopted Royal Borough Local Plan (2003)

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within Settlement Area Highways and Parking Employment

DG1, H10, H11 P4, T5 E6

These policies can be found at
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local plan documents and appendices

MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
National Planning Policy Framework Sections (NPPF) (2018)

Section 2 — Achieving sustainable development
Section 4 — Decision making

Section 5 — Delivering a sufficient supply of housing
Section 9 — Promoting sustainable transport
Section 11 — Making effective use of land

Section 12 — Achieving well-designed places

25


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/downloads/download/154/local_plan_documents_and_appendices

6.2

6.3

7.1

Borough Local Plan: Submission Version

Issue Local Plan Policy
Design in keeping with character and appearance SP2, SP3. HO5
of area
Makes suitable provision for infrastructure IF1, IF2
Employment ED3

The NPPF sets out that decision-makers may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans
according to their stage of preparation. The Borough Local Plan Submission Document was
published in June 2017. Public consultation ran from 30 June to 27 September 2017. Following
this process the Council prepared a report summarising the issues raised in the representations
and setting out its response to them. This report, together with all the representations received
during the representation period, the plan and its supporting documents have now been
submitted to the Secretary of State for examination. The Borough Local Plan submission version
does not form part of the statutory development plan for the Borough. However, by publishing
and submitting the Borough Local Plan for independent examination the Council has formally
confirmed its intention to adopt the submission version. As the Council considers the emerging
Borough Local Plan to be sound and legally compliant, officers and Councillors should accord
relevant policies and allocations significant weight in the determination of applications taking
account of the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies. Therefore, the
weight afforded to each policy at this stage will differ depending on the level and type of
representation to that policy. Significant weight is to be accorded to Borough Local Plan
Submission Version policies in this case.

This document can be found at:
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough local plan/1351/submission/1

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

. RBWM Townscape Assessment — view at:
RBWM Parking Strategy — view at:

More information on these documents can be found at;
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local development framework/494/supplementary planni

ng

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:
[ The impact of the proposal on the character and appearance of the area.

ii The impact of the proposal on the neighbouring amenity and the amenity of future
occupiers.

iii Highways and parking.

iv  Loss of employment

26


https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/201026/borough_local_plan/1351/submission/1
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning
https://www3.rbwm.gov.uk/info/200414/local_development_framework/494/supplementary_planning

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

i Impact on the character and appearance of the area

Local Plan Policy DG1 and emerging policy SP3 set out the design guidance for new
development. Local Plan Policy H10 refers specifically to new residential development schemes,
requiring them to display high standards of design and landscaping in order to create attractive,
safe and diverse residential areas. Policy H11 states that in established residential areas
planning permission will not be granted for schemes which introduce a scale or density which
would be incompatible with or cause damage to the character and amenity of the area. Emerging
policy HO5 requires all new housing to be developed at a density that is consistent with achieving
good design and the density of development will be informed by amongst other things the need to
ensure satisfactory residential amenity for both the proposed accommodation and nearby
residential properties. The NPPF (revised July 2018) Section 12 ‘Achieving well-designed places’
states that ‘the creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning
and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable
development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make development
acceptable to communities.” Paragraph 127 states that planning policies and decisions should
ensure that developments, amongst other things, function well and add to the overall quality of
the area, not just for the short term but over the lifetime of the development; are visually attractive
as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping; are
sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built environment and
landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such
as increased densities) and create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which
promote health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.

The site lies within a predominately residential suburban area with a mix of 2 storey detached
dwellings, bungalows and maisonettes. The site is set behind adjoining rear gardens and a
parade of shops with first floor flats above. Whilst views of the site are somewhat limited from
Springfield Road, the site is visible from the public realm from the adjoining footpath which runs
along the southern boundary of the site serving the adjacent school and nursery. The site is also
visible from the adjoining residential properties.

The site is constrained by its size and shape. It is considered that the layout would be dominated
by hard surfacing/car parking, the buildings would be sited close to the site boundaries and
limited garden depths have been provided in relation to the size of the dwellings. No cycle
storage has been provided and the dwellings would have a poor outlook onto the access/parking
area. The cramped layout produces poor amenity for future occupiers of the dwellings. House 1
would look straight out onto the access road and parking area and has a very restricted rear
amenity space. Houses 2-4 would also look straight out onto the parking area and also have
limited amenity space producing an unsatisfactory layout. The siting of House 1 up against the
adjacent footpath, close to the access road and close to the rear elevation of the shops/first floor
flats produces a very cramped, unsatisfactory layout and the dwelling would appear ‘squeezed
in’.

Whilst no objection is raised to the contemporary design per se there is concern that the overall
height of the houses on plots 2-4 would appear uncharacteristically high in the context of the
surrounding area. The proposed houses 2-4 would measure 9.3m in height and the detached
dwellings in Springfield Road have modest ridge heights of just 7m and bungalows lie to the north
of the site. The addition of the dormers and photovoltaic panels adds to the overall bulk and scale
of the development. There is concern that the proposal would appear at odds in this suburban
location and out of keeping with the general character of the surrounding residential area and
would detract from the visual amenity of the locality in general. There is also concern that the
introduction of grey slate would appear at odds with the characteristic red plain tiles in the locality.

It is concluded that the proposed development by virtue of its layout, density, siting, size, scale,
height and materials would result in a cramped, overdevelopment of the site and would appear
out of context with the surrounding residential area to the detriment of the character and
appearance of the locality in general and produce poor amenity for future occupiers, contrary to
adopted policies DG1, H10 and H11 and emerging policies SP3 and HOS5.

27



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

ii Impact on the neighbouring amenity and the amenities of future occupiers.

As set out above it is considered that the cramped layout would produce poor amenity for the
future occupiers of the proposed dwellings. It is also necessary to carefully consider the
proposals impact on the living conditions of the neighbouring properties in terms of light, outlook,
privacy and noise. The single storey garages and lock-ups currently abut the boundaries of the
rear gardens of properties in Springfield Road and Combermere Close. The proposed 2 % storey
dwellings (houses 2-4) would be 9.3m in height and have been designed with full length, first floor
bedroom windows and rear dormer bedroom windows. The dwellings would be sited between
5.3m and 8m from the rear boundaries of 1 & 2 Combermere Close. Whilst it is considered that
the proposal would not result in an unacceptable impact on sunlight or daylight to these
neighbouring properties, there is concern that the proposal would appear visually dominant and
unduly obtrusive when viewed from the rear of these properties to the detriment of their outlook.
In addition the existing bungalows currently enjoy secluded rear gardens and it is considered that
the proposal would introduce an unacceptable level of overlooking and loss of privacy to their
rear gardens to the detriment of their amenities.

The flank elevation of House 4 would be sited 1m from the rear boundary of numbers 121 and
123 Springfield Road and a first floor bathroom window is proposed in this flank elevation which
is proposed to be fixed and obscure glazed. This could be conditioned in the event of any
planning permission being granted to prevent any overlooking and loss of privacy. Whilst it is
accepted that the outlook from the rear of these properties would be altered it is considered that
sufficient distance would be retained and it is not considered that the proposal would result in an
unacceptable level of harm to the living conditions of the properties in Springfield Road in terms
of light, outlook and privacy.

House 1 has first floor windows in the rear elevation which serve bedrooms and a stairwell which
would look out onto the adjacent footpath and rear gardens of the maisonettes in Westmead.
There is already a degree of overlooking from the adjacent first floor flats above the parade of
shops and on balance it is not considered that the proposal would introduce an unacceptable
level of overlooking and loss of privacy to the maisonettes in Westmead.

House 1 would be sited approximately 4.5m from a rear window in the adjacent first floor flat at
119 Springfield Road. Whilst, on balance, it is not considered that the proposal would have an
unacceptable impact on light and outlook from this first floor flat it is however considered that
limited spacing provided between the 2 storey dwelling and the shops/ first floor flats is indicative
of a cramped layout.

It is not considered that the proposal would have an adverse impact on the adjacent school and
nursery site and would not introduce an unacceptable level of noise and disturbance to the
surrounding properties.

For the reasons set out above it is considered that the proposal would have a harmful effect on
the living conditions of the neighbouring bungalows at 1 & 2 Combermere Close and would be
contrary to guidance set out in paragraph 127 of the NPPF and emerging policies SP3 and HO5.

iii Highways and Parking

An existing access road, approximately 4.4m wide, currently serves the application site and
provides rear servicing access to the parade of shops and access to the first floor flats above.
Much of Springfield Road has residential permit parking restrictions in place however other
sections of the road and other roads in the immediate area are not subject to parking restrictions.
Although there is a bus route on Springfield Road, the site is located in excess of 800mm from
the nearest railway station and is therefore considered to be located within an area of poor
accessibility.

28



7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

Based on the parking standards identified in the current RBWM Parking Strategy (2004) the
proposed development would require parking provision for 11 vehicles (2 spaces for the 3 bed
dwelling and 3 spaces for each of the 4 bed dwellings). The parking spaces measure 4.8m by
2.5m which is considered to be sufficient in terms of size. However only 6 vehicles have been
shown to be provided which amounts to a shortfall of 5 spaces. The shortfall in parking provision
would be likely to result in overspill parking on the access road and other roads in the vicinity and
would be detrimental to traffic flows and road safety.

The application has been accompanied by a swept path analysis and the parking layout would
indicate that vehicles would be able to turn on-site in order to allow vehicles to enter and exit in a
forward gear. However there is inadequate space to allow for deliveries or removal vehicles
without blocking parked vehicles or for delivery vehicles to turn.

The proposed development is unlikely to result in the generation of significant additional vehicle
trips onto the local highway network when compared to the existing/previous use of the site.
Whilst the application indicates that cycle storage will be provided specific details are not
identified and details of secure, covered cycle storage provision is required and can be secured
by condition. Whilst refuse collection would meet bin carrying distances, refuse vehicles are likely
to stop in a location that would block access to the site.

The access is constrained by walls/fences on both sides and the minimum width for a private
drive, which would allow for two vehicles to pass as well as a shared use with pedestrians is
4.8m. The access arrangement would have to work for the new development as well as
accommodating existing servicing for the shops and access to the flats above the shops. There is
also an existing lock-up storage unit which is proposed to be retained on site and access to this
unit has not been identified and the impact of this on parking for the site needs clarification.

Further analysis about the accessibility of the site has been provided following initial concerns
being raised, however the RBWM standards are based on the distance from the nearest railway
station only and therefore the site is considered to be located in an area of poor accessibility. The
RBWM standard for a private drive is 4.8m and although the note suggests that two vehicles
would be able to pass the access is bounded by a wall and a fence on both sides where vehicles
tend to drive away from the edge of the road. It is therefore questioned whether it would be
practical for two vehicles to pass on this access. The note also suggests that service vehicles
could utilise the layby at the front of the shops, although there is no indication that existing
businesses would find this practical. Access to the existing lock-up that is to be retained is likely
to block access to the parking bays. Whilst the Transport Note seeks to justify the proposed
parking provision (6 spaces) based on car ownership identified in the 2011 census, these do not
meet the current RWBM Parking standards (requirement for 11 spaces). The revised swept path
analysis is accepted, although it is noted that access to the existing lock-up is likely to block
access to the parking bays. Given the significant growth in home deliveries over recent years, it is
not accepted that there won’t be regular deliveries to the site and there would be inadequate
space for delivery vehicles without blocking parked vehicles, delivery vehicles would be unable to
turn and it is not clear how larger vehicles could access the site. Despite the additional
information provided, the proposal remains unacceptable in respect of the level of parking provide
and the suitability of the access. The proposal is contrary to policies T5 and P4 of the Local Plan
and emerging policy IF2.

iv Loss of employment

The site contains a single storey building permitted in 1989 which is understood to have been
used as offices up until recently. Whilst the office is how vacant it is not considered to be
‘abandoned’ as suggested by the agent nor would it have a nil use. It is proposed to demolish
the office building as part of this application and it has not been properly demonstrated that any
loss of this employment use would not harm the employment opportunities in the locality.
Therefore the application is considered to be contrary to saved policy E6. Policy E6 generally
supports proposals for redevelopment of sites in business use to alternative uses such as
housing. However, this is subject to proposals having no adverse impact on locally available
employment opportunities and the compatibility with other policies in the Local Plan. Emerging
policy ED3 requires the provision of credible and robust evidence of an appropriate period of

29



7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

marketing for the economic use and that the proposal would not cause unacceptable harm to the
local economy. No marketing evidence has been provided and no information has been supplied
to demonstrate that the office use can be lost without harm to the local economy. The proposal is
therefore considered to be harmful to the provision of local employment opportunities and
contrary to policy E6 of the Local Plan and emerging policy ED3.

Other Material Considerations

It is acknowledged that this scheme would make a small contribution to further boosting the
Borough’s housing stock. However, it is the view of the Local Planning Authority that the socio-
economic benefits of the additional dwellings would be significantly and demonstrably outweighed
by the adverse impacts arising from the scheme proposed, contrary to the adopted and emerging
local plan policies, all of which are essentially consistent with the NPPF.

The agent contends that the internal space measurements exceed the national space standards
and the private external space exceeds the Council’'s open space standards for domestic garden
size in the emerging Local Plan. However these are not the only indicators of an acceptable
development and for the reasons set out above it is not considered that the proposal would result
in a high quality development.

It is alleged that the garage roofs could be asbestos and an Asbestos informative could be
imposed in the event of planning permission being granted to advise the applicant of the
requirements of the Control of Asbestos at Work Regulations 1987 (as amended).

The replacement of the existing boundary garage walls with alternative boundary treatments
would be a matter between the property owners and the developers.

Conclusion

It is not considered that there are any policy or other material considerations which outweigh the
harms identified above. The proposal is therefore recommended for refusal on the grounds that
the proposal constitutes a cramped, overdevelopment of the site and would appear out of context
with the surrounding residential development. In addition it is considered that the proposal would
appear visually dominant and unduly obtrusive when viewed from the neighbouring bungalows in
Combermere Close to the detriment of their outlook and would result in an unacceptable level of
overlooking and privacy to the rear gardens of these properties. The width of the access road and
the shortfall in parking provision are also unacceptable. It has also not been adequately
demonstrated that the loss of this employment use would not harm the employment opportunities
in the locality.

The proposal therefore fails to comply with policies DG1, H10, H11, T5, P4 and E6 of the Royal
Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 (incorporating Alterations Adopted June
2003) and emerging policies IF2, SP3, HO5 and ED3 set out in the Borough Local Plan
Submission Version, as well as guidance set out in the National Planning Policy Framework.

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)

8.1 In line with the Council’s Charging Schedule the proposed development would be CIL
liable. CIL is charged at the rate of £240 per square metre. The Additional Information
Requirement Form has not been supplied with the application. It has however been calculated
that the proposed internal floor space of the development would be 576.5 sq.m and the total CIL
payment of £138,360 would be required.

30



CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on the 7" August 2018.

A total of 21 neighbours have been notified and 11 letters have been received from separate

addresses objecting to the application. The objections are summarised as:

Comment ‘ Officer Response

Overlooking and loss of privacy to neighbouring properties 1,

garages/storage? Loss of employment.

2 Combermere Close, 123 Springfield Road. 67868
Incongruity with other residential properties — existing
dwellings are 2 storey without dormers or bungalows. 6.5
Proposal will be 3 storey with dormer windows.
Safety risk for children attending The Lawns and Oakfield — 6.17
additional bins on pavement in Springfield Road '
Increase in traffic congestion — shortage of parking will lead 6.15
to on-street parking '
Inadequate size of parking bays and insufficient space for
, : : 6.15 & 6.16
fire engines and other large vehicles.
Single width road inadequate to serve 4 houses — how could
. . . 6.14 & 6.16

two vehicles access and exit the site. No room for pavement.
Wall of garages forms rear boundary of number 123 6.3
Springfield Road and would need to be replaced, '
Proposal will be visible from main street and have a massive
impact on all the surrounding houses especially 1 & 2 6.3
Combermere Close which are bungalows.
New houses will be 9.33m high — large houses. 6.5
Inadequate bin storage 4.1
Proposal will amount of serious loss of daylight and privacy. | 6.7-6.10
Site is not well served by public transport. 6.13
Obscure glazing could be changed at a later date 6.8
Not been designed to be sympathetic to surrounding 6.5& 6.7
buildings — visually obtrusive. Out of proportion for this area. ' '
Detriment to current residents — loss of light, overlooking,

. ; 6.7-6.10
loss of privacy and noise.
3m brick walls belong to the residents — inadequate to

: 6.23
replace with 1.8m fence.
Garage roofs are made of asbestos. 6.22
Loss of light and privacy to number 1 Combermere Close. 6.7
No buildings have dormer windows — development would be

: . 6.5

out of character with rest of properties.
Development would be crammed and overpowering. 6.4&6.5
Height and size would be detrimental to well-established

) 6.4&6.5
area of Windsor
Houses would look out of proportion — gardens would be 6.4
very small and not appropriate for family houses. '
Garage to the rear of 121 Springfield Road belongs to
number 121 and whilst not currently in use it is not 6.14
abandoned.
Overdevelopment 6.4
No bike storage 6.17
Would shops be less rentable with the loss of the 6.19

31




10.

11.

Site was used in association with the electrical shop until
) 6.19
recently and is not abandoned.
Create a dangerous junction particularly for pedestrians
, . 6.13 & 6.17
accessing adjacent school and nursery.
Development conflicts with local architectural vernacular 6.5
Development will be overbearing and oppressive 6.7
Size and scale are inappropriate for the location. 6.5
Loss of light and views to 119 Springfield Road. 6.10
Consultees
Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Highways Objection — Shortfall in parking provision and inadequate 6.13-6.18
width of access road and inadequacies of car parking
layout.
Environmental | Suggested conditions and informatives relating to Aircraft
Protection Noise, Air Quality Assessment, Construction working
Officer hours and collection during construction and demolition,

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

- Appendix A - Site location plan and block plan
- Appendix B — Floor plans

- Appendix C - Elevation drawings

- Appendix D — swept path analysis

REASONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL.

The proposed development, by virtue of its layout, density, siting, size, scale, height and
materials would result in a cramped, overdevelopment of the site and would appear out of context
with the surrounding residential area to the detriment of the character and appearance of the
locality in general and produce poor amenity for future occupiers, contrary to adopted policies
DG1, H10 and H11 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999
(incorporating Alterations Adopted June 2003) and emerging policies SP3 and HOS5 set out in the
Borough Local Plan Submission Version.

The proposed development, by virtue of its siting, size, fenestration design and height would
appear visually dominant and unduly obtrusive to the detriment of the outlook of the neighbouring
properties numbers 1 & 2 Combermere Close and would result in an unacceptable level of
overlooking and loss of privacy to their rear gardens contrary to guidance set out in paragraph
127 of the NPPF (revised 2018) and emerging policies SP3 and HO5 set out in the Borough
Local Plan Submission Version.

The proposed development has failed to provide sufficient car parking to accord with the adopted
parking standards. In addition the width of the access road is considered inadequate to serve
both the existing and proposed development. As such it is considered that the proposal would be
prejudicial to traffic flows and highway safety and contrary to adopted policies T5 and P4 of the
Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 (incorporating Alterations Adopted
June 2003) and emerging policy IF2 set out in the Borough Local Plan Submission Version.

The proposal has failed to demonstrate that the loss of employment use would not harm the
employment opportunities in the locality and as such the proposal is contrary to adopted policy
E6 of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 (incorporating Alterations
Adopted June 2003) and emerging policy ED3 set out in the Borough Local Plan Submission
Version.

32



APPENDIX A — LOCATION PLAN

=il

33



a

o

/ N
D).

3 7
O’M
,ﬁ.u e 4
%
S| ..




APPENDIX B — FLOOR PLANS

| i#
1= (]
Kl =

H =

IHEH

35



36



L .
=g

i HE ;li

H ool g = i

i ol = % i

L if -

37




38



APPENDIX C - ELEVATION DRAWINGS

39



40



APPENDIX D — SWEPT PATH ANALYSIS

L 1) s80L-El
=y OH SN O 1o3roe
810ze0TE DOz 4
auvg e
SLOTBOTE BL0TE0TE
aL
o5 45 aanouser [BH A8 o) AB N
Ad
SISATYNY HLVd Ld3MS

HOSONM * OV0H OTSIHONRCS BLLELL

LII0Md
15 OV0H TRIZON-JS
NI
woospsiudusa@pEew
BETH GERE D0
8058 OFIS0T0 L

WD HEOM ‘NOTONCT

V0 SSOHDONIMYHD 8L LFLL
3SNOH 140HILNS

LN SLI3P0Ud INS

ddv | HHD NMvRg) SLNSWNONZNY 3UvD AT

s | B | m 20u3 PRy B |

wpars SMpEY BURLNL QN0 @ ang
T S 00T
WELL | LD, 1R KO
wogEn =oummsg pUnaID FPog Ut
WELE | ] fog Temng
SEE 2 e
13002) Ackii

FN308c ITDH3A

"SAIDNIIDIE3T BO SADIVRNIIVNI

ANY 804 378V 38 LON TIVHS '0L7 S123r0dd INZD ONY
N2MS30 YOIYILNI ¥ JHNLISUHIYY YONI AS 03NddNS 8 A3y
00-c-¥2-E1dS HIAWNN SNIMYRT NOcn O35V S| ONIMYET SIHL L

5320V 3HL ONLLIXS AdN - SS30IW 3HL DNIESINI AW

41



o B 05T
BMOT L0GT
W00 WS

_50_ Al - SEhEUY g wang

10 S3DENSoRU AUE J0) 201 30 10U [IEYS Y] SRa3(0sd (U=
pue fjuo szeodind uoREWLIC| 10y 51 PERIMI IRYS BUL

“SBPLRRUED

L

i

SIE0EE S 10HEA

TAVE DNIMEYd DRIEIING A

SN A

\

NN

\

NN

SAVE ONDRIVA DNIZILNG Nah

\

42



WINDSOR URBAN

Appeal Ref.:

Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

Agenda

Appeal Decision Report

>
o
80
4 September 2018 - 28 September 2018 e

2 )
= S
2 | Royal Borough
2 | of Windsor &
2 | Maidenhead

18/60075/ENF Enforcement 17/50233/ENF Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/C/18/

Ref.: 3202261

Levi Loveridge c/o Agent: Mr Peter Alan Penn Projects Flat 5 The White House Market
Place Chalfont St Peter Gerrards Cross SL9 9HE

No Further Action No Further Action

Appeal against the Enforcement Notice: 1. Without planning permission the material change
of use of the land from agricultural land (previously undeveloped grass land) to vehicle
storage (airport parking). 2. Without planning permission the importation of materials,
including but not limited to, shingle, brick rubble and geotextile matting, to form a
hardstanding.

Land North of 2 And Rear of 2 To 36 Ditton Road Datchet Slough
25 September 2018

Officer Recommendation:

Dismissed Decision Date:

The appeal was dismissed and the enforcement notice was upheld without variation. The
Inspector concluded that an additional six months was not required and that the request for
further time had to be weighed against the harm caused by the unauthorised use to the
Green Belt.

43



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf
	Insert from: "APRIL 2017_Govt access and declarations of interest.pdf"
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf


	3 MINUTES
	4 PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)
	All_planning_applications

	5 ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

